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Memorandum of the Clerk’s Office regarding efforts to obtain  
Critique Services L.L.C.’s mailing or services address 



UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

 
Bankruptcy Court 

Eastern District of Missouri 
 
To:  Judge Rendlen 
 
From: Clerk’s Office 
 

RE: Critique Service LLC 
 

Date: 8/31/2015 
 
As requested by the Chambers, on August 17, 2015 the Clerk’s Office telephoned the location of 4144 Lindell 
Blvd., St. Louis, Missouri (314-652-6666) and asked to speak with Critique Services.  The Owner of this 
building informed the Clerk’s Office that Critique Services has not been in their building for about five (5) 
years.  Also, while searching for the Critique Service LLC mailing address on the internet, we found the Better 
Business Bureau website with the Critique Services LLC name, telephone number and address (see the screen 
print shown below). 
 
The Clerk’s Office has no other information as to the business address of Critique Services LLC. 
 
Better Business Bureau website screen print below was copied on 8-31-2015. 
http://www.bbb.org/stlouis/business-reviews/attorney-bankruptcy/critique-services-in-saint-louis-mo-
110157169/directions 
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Notice of Winding Up and Articles of Termination for  
Critique Legal Services L.L.C., filed with the Missouri Secretary of State 
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“Critique Legal Services” advertisement  
in the 2015-16 Greater St. Louis Yellow Pages  

and  
“Critique Legal Services” listing in the 2015-16 Greater St. Louis White Pages 
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Articles of Organization for Genesis Advertising, Marketing and Business 
Services L.L.C., filed with the Missouri Secretary of State 









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 28 
 

Transcript of February 23, 2016 hearing on multiple Motions to Disgorge 
filed by Critique Services Business clients 

 



UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

ST. LOUIS DIVISION

IN RE:               )  Case No. 15-48398 
) 

KIMBERLY BLACK, )  
)  

                  Debtor.     )
IN RE:               )  Case No. 15-48394 

) 
KEVIN SHAUNTE MATTHIS, )  

)  
)  

                  Debtor.     )
IN RE:               )  Case No. 15-48556

) 
JESSICA WHITE, )  

)  
)  

                  Debtor.     )
IN RE:               )  Case No. 15-48794

) 
ASHLEY MARIE NELSON, )  

)  
)  

                  Debtor.     )
IN RE:               )  Case No. 15-48903

) 
ANNETTE LATOSCA JONES, )  

)  
)  

                  Debtor.     )
IN RE:               )  Case No. 14-41522

) 
JEANNETTA McCLINE-CARTER, )  Thomas F. Eagleton Courthouse

)  111 South 10th Street
)  St. Louis, Missouri 63102

Debtor. )  
)  February 23, 2016
)  9:31 a.m.

TRANSCRIPT OF 15-48398 MOTION TO DISGORGE ATTORNEY FEES(18);
15-48394: MOTION TO DISGORGE ATTORNEY FEES(16); 15-48556 ORDER
TO SHOW CAUSE AS TO WHY DEAN MERIWETHER SHOULD NOT BE ORDERED
TO RETURN HIS ATTORNEY’S FEES (28); 15-48794 MOTION TO REFUND
ATTORNEY S FEES  (15); 15-48903 MOTION TO DISGORGE ATTORNEY

FEES (16); 14-41522 HEARING.
BEFORE HONORABLE CHARLES E. RENDLEN, III
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT JUDGE
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APPEARANCES:

For Debtors: KIMBERLY BLACK, PRO SE

KEVIN SHAUNTE MATTHIS, PRO SE

JESSICA WHITE, PRO SE

ASHLEY MARIE NELSON, PRO SE

ANNETTE LATOSCA JONES, PRO SE

JEANNETTA McCLINE-CARTER, PRO SE

Chapter 7 Trustee: TRACY A. BROWN, ESQ.
1034 S. Brentwood Blvd., Suites 1830
St. Louis, Missouri 63117

Chapter 7 Trustee: E. REBECCA CASE, ESQ.
7733 Forsyth Blvd.
Suite 500
Saint Louis, Missouri 63105

ECRO: James Moeller

TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE: TRANSCRIPTS PLUS, INC.
435 Riverview Circle
New Hope, Pennsylvania 18938
Telephone:  215-862-1115
Facsimile: 215-862-6639
e-mail CourtTranscripts@aol.com

Proceedings recorded by electronic sound recording,
transcript produced by transcription service.
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THE COURT:  Good morning.  Please be seated.  We have1

a special 9:30 docket before we start the docket.  And we’ll go2

ahead and call roll and see who’s here.3

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Okay.  Kevin Matthis.4

MR. MATTHIS:  Here.5

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Kimberly Black.6

MS. BLACK:  Here.7

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Jessica White.8

MS. WHITE:  Here.9

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Ashley Nelson.10

MS. NELSON:  Here.11

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  And Annette Jones.12

(No audible response heard)13

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Judge, I think there’s also one14

other person that is not on the docket, she’s this lady in the15

red shirt.16

THE COURT:  And your name, ma’am?17

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Jeannetta McCline-Carter.18

THE COURT:  Okay; McCline-Carter.19

MR. WAGNER:  This is Eric Wagner.20

THE COURT:  Oh, Eric, you’re from the Attorney21

General’s Office?22

(The Court engaged in colloquy with unrelated individual in23

unrelated matter.)24

THE COURT:  And what trustees do we have that are25
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interested in these cases?1

MS. BROWN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  We have Tracy2

Brown.3

MS. CASE:  Rebecca Case, Your Honor.4

THE COURT:  All right.5

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  And, Judge, if we could take a6

couple of the folks out of order so they can get back to work,7

or wherever they have to get going.8

THE COURT:  Okay.  9

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Ashley Nelson.10

THE COURT:  You asked to -- come on up, and tell us11

your name and address.12

MS. NELSON:  Ashley Nelson, address is 716 Greenway13

Manor Drive, Apartment L, Florissant, Missouri 63031.14

THE COURT:  Okay.  And you have your trustee -- the15

trustee assigned to your case?16

MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor.  Tracy Brown.17

THE COURT:  All right.  And do you want to tell me18

what relief you’re asking for today, and what happened to you?19

MS. NELSON:  I went through Critique Services and I20

paid them 680 something dollars.21

THE COURT:  Do you have those receipts with you, by22

chance?23

MS. NELSON:  I don’t have them with me.24

THE COURT:  Okay.  Can you --25
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MS. NELSON:  I didn’t know to bring anything; I’m1

sorry.2

THE COURT:  Can you fax a copy or scan a copy and3

send it to the trustee?4

MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor, I requested that she5

would send me copies of those.  So she indicated that she can6

do that.7

THE COURT:  Excellent.8

MS. NELSON:  I paid them in July, and they did not9

start my case until November.  I’ve called them numerous of10

times.  I left word numerous of times to go down to their11

office to fill out the same paperwork over and over again.  And12

I still have not had my official court date.  I think I saw the13

attorney like three -- two months after I paid them.14

THE COURT:  Do you know who -- what that attorney’s15

name was?16

MS. NELSON:  It was Dean.17

THE COURT:  Dean Meriwether?18

MS. NELSON:  Yes.19

THE COURT:  We do not see him present today, okay.20

MS. BROWN:  And, Your Honor, I’d like to just21

interrupt for just a second.22

THE COURT:  Sure.23

MS. BROWN:  We did have the 341 meeting, but it was24

only after multiple settings that she agreed to go forward by25
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herself without representation.1

THE COURT:  Right, because Critique failed to furnish2

you any representation.3

MS. NELSON:  Yes.4

THE COURT:  And no lawyer ever entered their5

appearance.  That’s what the record shows.6

MS. NELSON:  Yes.7

THE COURT:  Correct?8

MS. NELSON:  That’s correct.9

THE COURT:  Okay.  So I was kind of moving that10

along.11

(Laughter)12

THE COURT:  And so did you pay them in cash?13

MS. NELSON:  I did.14

THE COURT:  Okay.  And they just gave you a receipt?15

MS. NELSON:  They just gave me a receipt.16

THE COURT:  And then they never had --17

MS. NELSON:  No follow-up or anything.  I --18

THE COURT:  Do you remember who you paid the cash to?19

MS. NELSON:  I can describe her, but I don’t remember20

her name.  I know I did speak with Renee, she’s like one of the21

managers of Critique Services.22

THE COURT:  That’s Renee Mayweather.23

MS. NELSON:  And I also spoke with -- they call her24

Bae (phonetic).25
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THE COURT:  Bae, yeah.1

MS. NELSON:  I spoke with her several times also.2

THE COURT:  And what did they --3

MS. NELSON:  They just gave me the runaround.  That4

someone will call, that I need to come back down and sign5

another paper, or they were trying to contact me, but they was6

calling the wrong number.  And -- I mean they just gave me so7

many different excuses.8

THE COURT:  So all you got was a bunch of excuses?9

MS. NELSON:  Yes.10

THE COURT:  No attorney showed up.11

MS. NELSON:  No.12

THE COURT:  They told you when you hired them that13

you were going to have an attorney represent you, is that14

correct?15

MS. NELSON:  Yes, that’s correct. 16

THE COURT:  And all you really dealt with -- well,17

you did say you met with Mr. Meriwether. 18

MS. NELSON:  I did finally meet with him, but even19

then, I had to -- like there was no follow-up after that.  I20

had to keep calling them to see what was the next step, or when21

was my court date.  I didn’t get my official bankruptcy number22

-- case number until October.23

MS. BROWN:  Correction, Your Honor, that would be24

November 23rd --25
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MS. NELSON:  Yeah, November.1

MS. BROWN:  -- 2015.2

THE COURT:  November 23rd.  And how many times did3

you get continued?  Or maybe the trustee knows.4

MS. BROWN:  It was originally set in December, it was5

continued to January, and then it was continued again to6

February 12th, and the case was heard on February the 12th.7

THE COURT:  And then you filed a request of me today8

to --9

MS. NELSON:  Yes.10

THE COURT:  -- refund the Critique legal fees,11

correct?  So they did pay your filing fee.12

MS. NELSON:  Yes.13

THE COURT:  Okay.  And that’s part of that 600 and so14

dollars.  So -- do you remember how much you paid for the15

attorney’s fees?16

MS. NELSON:  I do not.17

THE COURT:  Okay.  What was the total amount you paid18

them?19

MS. NELSON:  $684.20

THE COURT:  Eighty-four, okay, I’ve heard that number21

before.  All right.  684, you paid 335 for your filing fee in22

this case.23

MS. NELSON:  Yes.24

THE COURT:  I think that’s right.  All right.  So my25
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math tells me they charged you 349 in attorney’s fees.1

MS. NELSON:  That’s correct.2

THE COURT:  Did they try to charge you anything else?3

MS. NELSON:  No.4

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Well, anything further5

the trustee wants to say?6

MS. BROWN:  No, Your Honor.7

THE COURT:  Well, in this case, you’ll -- since they8

abandoned you, failed to represent you when they were required9

to, and generally messed --10

MS. NELSON:  Wasted my time.11

THE COURT:  -- everything up, they will be required12

to -- Critique and Dean Meriwether will be required to refund13

$349.14

MS. NELSON:  Okay.15

THE COURT:  And we’ll enter a judgment in your favor16

for that amount.17

MS. NELSON:  Okay.18

THE COURT:  Okay?  Thank you for appearing.19

MS. NELSON:  Thank you so much.20

THE COURT:  Now you can go back to work.21

MS. NELSON:  Okay.22

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Judge, the next person is Annette23

Jones.24

THE COURT:  Hi.  State your full name for the record,25
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and where you live.1

MS. JONES:  Annette Latosca Jones.  I live at 37172

Louisiana Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63118.3

THE COURT:  And you also have a bankruptcy before4

Tracy Brown, the trustee.5

MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor.  Tracy Brown appearing,6

as well.7

THE COURT:  Oh, and let Mr. Clear swear you in.8

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Please raise your right hand.9

ANNETTE LATOSCA JONES, DEBTOR, SWORN10

THE COURT:  Oh, and -- and -- I got ahead of myself. 11

Did we want to have her come up and be sworn in?  I’m sorry.12

Ms. Nelson, I’m calling your case again.  Please13

raise your right hand.14

ASHLEY MARIE NELSON, DEBTOR, SWORN15

THE COURT:  In the matter of Ashley Marie Nelson, 15-16

48794.  We’ve heard your testimony.  Would it change any now17

that you are under oath?  Or would you give the exact identical18

testimony?19

MS. NELSON:  I would give the exact identical20

testimony.21

THE COURT:  Thank you very much.22

MS. NELSON:  You’re welcome.23

THE COURT:  You can go back to work.24

MS. NELSON:  Thank you.25
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THE COURT:  Now, Ms. Jones, you’re under oath.  And1

the first thing I -- does the trustee want to make a statement,2

or does --3

MS. BROWN:  Well,  Your Honor, in this case, it was4

also filed in November.  It was -- her setting was in December. 5

That was continued to January.6

After that, it was continued to February the 12th,7

and that was the day that the case was heard.8

I did question the debtor about whether or not she9

had a copy of her bankruptcy schedules.  And she indicated that10

she had not been provided a copy of her schedules.  So that was11

one of the issues that I had, that she re -- she said she12

reviewed them in the office, but she was never given a copy to13

keep.14

THE COURT:  And so you were the only one in15

possession of those schedules at this -- at this point in time,16

is that correct?17

MS. BROWN:  That is correct, Your Honor.18

THE COURT:  And I take it her attorney was Dean19

Meriwether?20

MS. BROWN:  That is correct, Your Honor.21

THE COURT:  All right.  And -- Ms. Jones, how’d you22

pay them?23

MS. JONES:  Cash.24

THE COURT:  And when did you pay them?25
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MS. JONES:  August.  I don’t remember the exact date,1

but it was in August.2

THE COURT:  How much did you pay them?3

MS. JONES:  I think it was $684, or something like4

that.5

THE COURT:  Just like the other lady, $684, $335 as6

the filing fee, and $349 for filing the bankruptcy --7

MS. JONES:  Correct.8

THE COURT:  -- is that correct?  Okay.  So obviously9

you’re 335 did make it to the Court --10

MS. JONES:  Um-hum, right.11

THE COURT:  -- because you got your filing fee paid.12

MS. JONES:  Um-hum.13

THE COURT:  And --14

MS. JONES:  Yes.15

THE COURT:  The yes and no works much better on --16

the nodding of the head doesn’t go too -- we don’t pick that up17

on the microphone.18

But more importantly, what -- how many times did you19

meet with Mr. Meriwether?20

MS. JONES:  Actually, I don’t think it was Meriwether21

that I met with at first.  I think it was someone that got22

their license suspended or something that I met with at first. 23

And that’s how I continued to go with Meriwether.24

THE COURT:  Was -- was he somebody in his fifty --25
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late fifties?1

MS. JONES:  Um-hum.  Oh, yes.2

THE COURT:  Can you describe him a little bit on the3

record?4

MS. JONES:  Caucasian, older guy.  Tall.5

THE COURT:  Mr. Dellamano.6

MS. JONES:  Yeah, I think that’s his name.7

THE COURT:  Does that refresh your recollection?8

MS. JONES:  Yes.9

THE COURT:  Okay.  Robert Dellamano.  All right. 10

Then -- you had one conversation with him?11

MS. JONES:  Yup.  I had one conversation with him, it12

was very short.  No more than five minutes.13

THE COURT:  Okay.  And in regards to going to the14

office, how many times did you have to go there?15

MS. JONES:  At least seven.  After --16

THE COURT:  Seven times?17

MS. JONES:  Seven times after numerous calls to the18

office.  No one returning my call.  The reception will tell me19

that she’ll have someone call me back; they never will call.  I20

was just concerned about when was my course going to be -- when21

was I going to receive my case number.22

THE COURT:  All right.  In regards to the people at23

the office, did you have conversations with anyone named Renee?24

MS. JONES:  Yes, I had a conversation with Renee.  I25
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also had a conversation with Bae.  I had a conversation with1

the receptions, I’m not for sure her name.  They all gave me2

the same answers: It was going to be filed.  It was some issues3

with them filing numerous cases, and mine just got lost.  They4

told me my case got lost, so that’s why it didn’t get filed. 5

And I paid them in August, and they say, “Oh, I’m sorry, you6

know, it got lost, so we’ll file it.”  Kept going back, and7

they just kept giving me the runaround.8

THE COURT:  Are you asking me to refund $349?9

MS. JONES:  Yes, I am.10

THE COURT:  Okay.  Does the trustee have anything11

further to add?12

MS. BROWN:  Well, Your Honor, I’m not sure how this13

would be possible, but if there were some way that she could14

get a copy of her case.  I don’t know if the Court could15

provide her a copy, or how that would work.16

THE COURT:  We’ll get that done.17

MS. BROWN:  Okay; thank you.18

THE COURT:  And we’ll see if we can do that -- do we19

want to do that now?  Okay.  Yeah, you can do it.  I think20

we’re going to get that for you.21

MS. JONES:  Thank you.22

THE COURT:  Just stick around for a second.23

MS. JONES:  Okay.24

THE COURT:  All right.  The Court will find that you25
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were abandoned, neglected, given the runaround, wide variety of1

issues that would require Critique Services and/or -- however2

they do business since they’re in the phone book a couple3

different ways -- and Dean Meriwether be jointly and severally4

liable to you in the sum of $349.5

MS. JONES:  Thank you.6

THE COURT:  Thank you.  And we’ll be ready for the7

next one.8

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Kevin Matthis.9

THE COURT:  Hi, Mr. Matthis.10

MR. MATTHIS:  Your Honor, how you doing?11

THE COURT:  State your name and address.12

MR. MATTHIS:  Kevin Shaunte Matthis, 12348 Shoreridge13

Court.14

THE COURT:  Please raise your right hand, and be put15

under oath.16

KEVIN MATTHIS, DEBTOR, SWORN17

THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Matthis -- and Tracy18

Brown’s here again.19

MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor.  Tracy Brown, the20

trustee on the case.21

THE COURT:  All right.  Tell us a little bit about22

your story.  How much did you -- how much and when did you pay23

Critique?24

MR. MATTHIS:  $684.25
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THE COURT:  Also.1

MR. MATTHIS:  In August.2

THE COURT:  Okay.  And when did you pay that?3

MR. MATTHIS:  August.4

THE COURT:  Do you have that receipt?5

MR. MATTHIS:  No, I don’t.6

THE COURT:  Do you have it -- could you provide it to7

the trustee?8

MR. MATTHIS:  Uh, no, I don’t have any receipts.9

THE COURT:  No receipts, okay.  Did you pay them in10

cash?11

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.12

THE COURT:  And who did you pay, do you remember?13

MR. MATTHIS:  Renee, Bae --14

THE COURT:  Oh, you -- you paid Renee Mayweather15

directly?16

MR. MATTHIS:  Yeah.  Yeah.17

THE COURT:  And she gave you the receipt?18

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.  The receptionist, I don’t know19

which -- I’m not sure which one it was.  Most of the time it20

was -- it was a different one every time I came there, so --21

THE COURT:  A different person doing the reception?22

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.23

THE COURT:  Okay.24

(Ms. Brown and Mr. Matthis engaged in off-the-record colloquy)25
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MS. BROWN:  I’d like to get on the record that he1

made multiple payments, Your Honor.2

THE COURT:  Oh, he made multiple payments, okay.  So3

you made like five payments --4

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.5

THE COURT:  -- over a period of time?  Okay.6

In regards to your bankruptcy, how -- how did they7

treat you when you went in there?8

MR. MATTHIS:  They was nice, but they told me it9

shouldn’t take no more than 60 days.  I started -- I first went10

there July 7th, and I didn’t get my case filed til November --11

I’m not sure of the date.12

MS. BROWN:  I think it was November the --13

THE COURT:  Did you ever meet with an attorney?14

MR. MATTHIS:  No, I never met the attorney.15

THE COURT:  You never met an attorney?16

MR. MATTHIS:  No.17

THE COURT:  Who -- who went over your bankruptcy18

schedules with you?19

MR. MATTHIS:  His -- the -- Renee, the Bae lady, and20

there was another lady.  I think her name was Tracy.21

THE COURT:  Tracy.22

MS. BROWN:  I have heard that before, Your Honor. 23

And I’ve been unable to confirm whether or not there is24

actually a Tracy that works at the office, or whether or not25
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that’s a name that’s being used.  It -- it was information that1

was provided to me by someone who recognized Beverly Diltz,2

indicated that she said she was Tracy.  But because the person3

recognized her, he basically responded and said you’re not4

Tracy, you’re Beverly.  So I’m still unclear whether or not5

they have a Tracy there, or if they’re saying that they’re6

Tracy.7

THE COURT:  They’re -- that may be further evidence8

to be developed.  But the person using the name Tracy may very9

well be Beverly Holmes-Diltz, is that what seems to be the10

case?  I’ve heard this information before.11

MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor.  I wish that I knew, but12

I do not.  I’ve been unable to get further -- clarification.13

THE COURT:  So you never met with a lawyer.14

MR. MATTHIS:  No.15

THE COURT:  Dean Meriwether signed your documents, is16

that correct?17

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.  Every time I went to see the18

attorney, they would say he wasn’t there.  And that’s when I19

ended up talking to one of the ladies.20

THE COURT:  Who are not licensed lawyers.  Did they21

say they were not licensed lawyers?  Or did they just --22

MR. MATTHIS:  No, they didn’t -- they didn’t say they23

were not lawyers.  They just was the sultans of him.  And they24

had my case.  Sent me back and forth to my job to get check25
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stubs for at least four months -- four to five months for the1

same dates.  And I did it like --2

THE COURT:  They kept losing the information.3

MR. MATTHIS:  Right.  I did it about seven times.4

THE COURT:  Well, here’s the thing, you hired this5

outfit to provide you with a lawyer, albeit we’ve found in6

other court proceedings it appears to be a rubber stamp.  In7

this case, it’s beyond rubber stamp, you never saw a lawyer.8

MR. MATTHIS:  Right.9

THE COURT:  Are you asking me to refund $349 that you10

paid them because they abandoned you, never allowed you to have11

legal representation, and never showed up in court?12

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.13

MS. BROWN:  And, Your Honor --14

THE COURT:  Anything else, Trustee?15

MS. BROWN:  Yes, Your Honor; two additional things. 16

At the time he appeared at the 341 meeting, he actually came in17

January and wasn’t comfortable proceeding at that point on his18

own.  So we continued it again.19

He came back in February, I did hear the case in20

February.  At that time, he indicated that he had a different21

address that -- than what was on the pleading.  So he filed his22

own notice of change of address, and he also indicated that he23

did not have a copy of his case, as well.  So that would be an24

additional request.25
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COURTROOM DEPUTY:  I’m sorry.  The folks on the1

phone, can you please mute your phones?  We have court going on2

right now.  Thank you.3

MS. BROWN:  That would be an additional request, Your4

Honor, that he be provided with a copy of his case.  He’s5

already filed his own change of address.6

THE COURT:  He doesn’t have a copy either.  Again,7

he’s totally abandoned.  Never had an attorney, but he talked8

to both Renee and, quote, “Tracy.”  The mysterious Tracy.9

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.10

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you very much, Mr.11

Matthis.  We’ll get a judgment sent to you in the mail.  If you12

stick around, we’ll run you a copy of your pleadings --13

MR. MATTHIS:  Okay.14

THE COURT:  -- that you filed.  That were filed on15

your behalf by non-attorneys.16

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.17

THE COURT:  So you really are representing yourself.18

MR. MATTHIS:  Yes.19

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you for appearing.20

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Judge, our next case is Kimberly21

Black, 15-48398.22

Ms. Black, please raise your right hand.23

KIMBERLY BLACK, DEBTOR, SWORN24

THE COURT:  All right.  State your address.25
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MS. BLACK:  4938 Margaretta Avenue, St. Louis,1

Missouri 63115.2

THE COURT:  All right.  And you also had a bankruptcy3

filed, and Ms. Brown was your trustee --4

MS. BLACK:  Yes.5

THE COURT:  -- is that correct?6

MS. BLACK:  Yes.7

MS. BROWN:  And I’m present, Your Honor, this8

morning.  Tracy Brown, the trustee on the case.9

THE COURT:  All right.  How much did you pay these10

people?11

MS. BLACK:  $684.12

THE COURT:  All right.  And tell me about what13

happened to you.14

MS. BLACK:  I made two payments.  I broken it in15

half.  My filing fee in July, and I paid my attorney fee in16

August, and my case wasn’t filed until November after several17

calls to them.  Because they told me that my case would be18

filed ten days after I pay them the attorney fee.  My case19

wasn’t filed until November.20

THE COURT:  Do you remember who you paid?21

MS. BLACK:  I paid Bae.22

THE COURT:  You paid Bae?23

MS. BLACK:  Um-hum.24

THE COURT:  Okay.  And --25
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MS. BLACK:  Yes, I’m sorry.1

THE COURT:  What’s that?2

MS. BLACK:  Yes, I paid Bae.3

THE COURT:  All right.  And did you ever meet with an4

attorney?5

MS. BLACK:  Yes, I met with Dean Meriwether once.6

THE COURT:  Okay.  And did he ever show up in court7

for you, or come to any of your 341 meetings?8

MS. BLACK:  No.  And I will call every -- on my way9

to court, I would always call them to see if somebody would be10

there to represent me.  Just this February 12th when I called -11

- actually I called them Monday, the 8th, and asked them would12

I have representation.  And they told me, “Yeah, you’ll be13

okay,” that’s what the -- they -- their words were.  And when I14

got --15

THE COURT:  That’s what they told you?16

MS. BLACK:  Yes.  When I got here that Friday, and17

realized that I had to represent myself, but they never18

answered calls.  They never were straightforward with you to19

tell you exactly what’s going on.  Actually when Ms. Tracy20

suggested that I get a refund, I called them -- and this was21

before my February 12th date.  And I said that if I’m gonna --22

she like, “Do you want a refund?”  I’m like, “Well, if you23

gonna represent me, no.  But if you’re not gonna represent me,24

yes.”  “Oh, no, we’ll be there.  You’ll be okay.”25
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THE COURT:  And they never showed up.1

MS. BLACK:  No.2

THE COURT:  They promised you --3

MS. BLACK:  And they didn’t --4

THE COURT:  -- they’d be there, and didn’t show up.5

MS. BLACK:  The Monday before my court date, and they6

still didn’t show up.  And even I called them all that day7

before court and after, and nobody ever answered the phone.8

THE COURT:  All right.  And you would like $3499

refunded?10

MS. BLACK:  Yes.11

THE COURT:  Anything else to put on the record on12

this case?13

MS. BROWN:  The only thing, Your Honor, I’d just like14

to state that the case was filed in November, November 5th. 15

The first 341 setting was in December.  We did not have all of16

the documents, so we weren’t able to hear it in December17

anyway.18

Ms. Black did appear in January, and we gave her19

another continuance.  And then in February when she came back,20

she did decide to go ahead and have her case heard pro se, by21

herself.22

THE COURT:  All right.  Well, based on the complete23

abandonment, dishonesty, failure to appear, we will refund your24

alleged attorney’s fees in $349, and find against Critique25
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Services, LLC and Dean Meriwether individually.1

MS. BLACK:  Okay.2

THE COURT:  Thank you for appearing.3

MS. BLACK:  Thank you.4

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  The next case, Judge, is Jessica5

White.  This is an order to show cause.6

THE COURT:  Yeah, this order -- we’ve actually heard7

from Ms. White before.  And you want your attorney’s fees8

returned.9

State your full name for the record.10

MS. WHITE:  Jessica White.11

THE COURT:  Well, go ahead and swear her in.12

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Please raise your right hand,13

ma’am.14

JESSICA WHITE, DEBTOR, SWORN15

THE COURT:  All right.  And, Ms. White, tell us what16

happened to you.  Oh, and Ms. Case is here, your trustee.  I’m17

sorry, get the appearances.18

MS. WHITE:  I actually started with them in August. 19

They kept telling me to come back.  So when I finally came back20

-- like I found my receipts and the dates.  When I finally came21

back in September, they took my attorney fees.  Then they told22

me to come back another month, which I did, which was on the23

12th and I -- October the 12th.24

THE COURT:  12th of which month?25
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MS. WHITE:  October the 12th, I’m sorry.1

THE COURT:  Okay.2

MS. WHITE:  And I paid $335.  The first time, I paid3

349.  Then I came back on October the 12th and paid 335.  And4

at that time, they gave me a date, which I have another paper5

to show my postpone for conference, which was October the 15th,6

2015 at 5 p.m.  When I got there, they said the systems were7

down.8

So then they kept giving me the runaround.  Before --9

actually before October, I think I came about two or three10

times trying to get -- to pay my filing fee.  They kept saying,11

oh, we thought you was gonna to something else.  I said, no.12

So after I did my own research, and talked to Tracy,13

I did talk to Renee, and someone else.  I gave them actually --14

I consulted with a lawyer through Washington University who15

told me what I needed to do.  So when I e-mailed them -- I have16

the text to prove that I text Tracy information I found, and17

that’s when they finally filed my case in November.18

THE COURT:  And Tracy, can you --19

MS. WHITE:  Um-hum.  I have her cell phone number,20

and a proof I sent her a text, and she replied back to me.21

THE COURT:  Oh, well, let’s put that cell phone22

number on the record, and you -- if you could share that with23

the trustee --24

MS. WHITE:  Um-hum.25
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THE COURT:  -- this may be helpful in clearing up the1

mystery of the magical Tracy.2

MS. WHITE:  I’m sorry, not Tracy.  This is Ms. Renee.3

THE COURT:  Oh.4

MS. WHITE:  This is Renee.5

THE COURT:  Oh, this is Renee.6

MS. WHITE:  This is Renee, I’m sorry.  Tracy’s the7

one I talked to and said she’s gonna get back with me, but she8

didn’t.  So then I talked to Renee -- this is Renee, I’m sorry. 9

She gave me her cell phone number, and text this information I10

found according to Supreme Courts, what you’re supposed to do11

during bankruptcy when your system is down.  And that’s when12

they finally filed my case.13

I did my own research and got everything done.  I14

guess I put a fire under them, and they finally filed my case.15

THE COURT:  I see.16

MS. WHITE:  But I do have Renee number, and I have17

the proof of texting, and she replied back to me.18

THE COURT:  Well, do we want to put that on the19

record?  We might as well.  Let’s have her --20

MS. CASE:  Go ahead and get the telephone number.21

MS. WHITE:  Her number is 618 area code, 580-6801.22

THE COURT:  All right.  23

MS. WHITE:  And I also have proof when I went to24

court, they suppose to give me a refund back.25



28

TRANSCRIPTS PLUS, INC.
PHONE 215-862-1115 ! FAX 215-862-6639 ! E-MAIL CourtTranscripts@aol.com

THE COURT:  Right.1

MS. WHITE:  And the letter I -- which was my fault, I2

did sign the paper saying I will accept a refund, but I never3

got it.  So when I did do the refund, they --4

THE COURT:  Oh, is that paper you’re referring to an5

exhibit that’s been filed --6

MS. WHITE:  Yeah.7

THE COURT:  -- in a number of cases saying that you8

were given a refund, and then you were hiring Robert Dellamano9

from --10

MS. WHITE:  Right, which is $100 receipt that I11

showed --12

THE COURT:  Once Mr. Meriwether was suspended, is13

that correct?14

MS. WHITE:  Correct.15

MS. CASE:  To clarify, Your Honor.  The debtor’s16

meeting of creditors was scheduled for December the 18th.  That17

day when I entered the courthouse, Mr. Dellamano was standing18

in the rotunda area basically waving his clients off.19

He came into the meeting of creditors’ room and20

basically told me that none of the debtors would be appearing.21

At that point, Ms. White spoke up and said, no, that22

she was there, and she wanted her case heard.  I asked the two23

of them to please step outside and let me know what was going24

to occur.25
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Mr. Dellamano indicated he needed to go upstairs and1

file some documents.  He went upstairs and filed, I believe, an2

entry of appearance and the disclosure of his compensation.3

And I conducted the debtor’s meeting.  The problem4

with the meeting was prior to the meeting, the trustee is5

supposed to have received a 2014 income tax return, the6

debtor’s pay stubs, and the debtor’s bank statement.7

Not only did the -- I did not have any of those8

things, the debtor indicated she had given them to Critique. 9

Mr. Dellamano indicated on the record he didn’t have them.10

The debtor was able to come up with some pay stubs11

and her 2014 tax return, and we were able to conduct her12

meeting.13

At the end of the meeting when I looked at the entry14

of appearance and the disclosure of compensation, it indicated15

that the debtor had paid $100 to Mr. Dellamano.  And the debtor16

said I haven’t received a refund, and I haven’t paid Mr.17

Dellamano any money.18

Mr. Dellamano assured the debtor she wouldn’t have to19

pay him any money.20

After the meeting of creditors, the debtor contacted21

me, she went to Critique.  And when she was at Critique, she22

asked for her full refund.23

What they did instead was they gave the debtor a24

cashier’s check, not a check drawn on any attorney’s trust25
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account, but a cashier’s check, and the person who gave it to1

her was Renee.  And Renee instructed the debtor to endorse the2

check, and the check was then -- was going to be given to Mr.3

Dellamano.4

We have a copy of that check, we have a copy -- and5

now a second disclosure and retainer agreement for legal6

representation, this one dated December the 18th, attempting to7

modify the one that previously was filed with the Court.  I8

guess it’s kind of like robbing the bank.  I’ve robbed the9

bank, now I’ve changed my mind, I want to give the money back.10

But basically this debtor -- the next thing she had11

to do is -- they didn’t list all of her creditors on December12

the 28th.  She had filed her amended Schedule E and F.  So13

she’s basically -- allegedly had representation from Mr.14

Meriwether and Mr. Dellamano, but she has not.15

THE COURT:  And they didn’t sustain that.  Did you16

actually endorse the cashier’s check back to them?17

MS. WHITE:  Yes, I have a receipt of $100 showing I18

gave it back to them.19

THE COURT:  Yeah, we need to make a copy of that. 20

And --21

MS. WHITE:  I have all three of my receipts of every22

time I paid.23

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, then we --24

MS. CASE:  And, Your Honor, I can deliver the copies25
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of the documents that I’ve received.1

THE COURT:  And also I -- I’d say that exhibit that2

the trustee has examined and will be accepted into evidence. 3

Thank you for taking care of that, and we’ll get you that4

information.5

So you not only got the runaround and got represented6

by all kinds of attorneys that never showed up --7

MS. WHITE:  Right.8

THE COURT:  -- you did all the work yourself.  And,9

therefore, are you asking me to refund the $349?10

MS. WHITE:  Yes.11

THE COURT:  And in this case, I’m going to find that12

Critique Services, LLC, Mr. Dean Meriwether and Mr. Robert13

Dellamano shall jointly and severally be liable to you in the14

sum of $349.15

MS. WHITE:  Thank you.16

THE COURT:  Anything further?17

MS. CASE:  No, Your Honor; thank you.18

THE COURT:  Thank you for appearing.19

MS. WHITE:  Thank you.20

COURTROOM DEPUTY:  Then we have one more, Judge, Ms.21

McCline-Carter.  Please raise your right hand, ma’am.22

JEANNETTA McCLINE-CARTER, DEBTOR, SWORN23

THE COURT:  State your full name.24

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  My name is Jeannetta25
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McCline-Carter.  My address is 11844 Beckett Fall Road,1

Florissant, Missouri 63033.2

THE COURT:  And I understand that you’ve recently3

dropped off some information to us, so this may be the first of4

two proceedings regarding your situation.  Do you understand5

that?6

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Yes.7

THE COURT:  All right.  Tell me what happened to you.8

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Well, I filed my bankruptcy with9

Critique, and I went to court --10

THE COURT:  About when, do you remember?11

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Oh, I can give you an exact12

date.  2/7/2014.  And I paid him on that day, and 2/20 -- I13

mean 1/27/14 vice versa.14

THE COURT:  Okay.15

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  And I went and I took the16

course, you know the course that we’re supposed to take.17

THE COURT:  Financial, yeah --18

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Yes.19

THE COURT:  -- education.20

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  And I went to, you know, have my21

thing with the Court, and the lawyer showed up there.  And22

everything went well.  And while I was there --23

THE COURT:  Do you remember which lawyer showed up? 24

Was it Mr. Robinson or Mr. Meriwether?25
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MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Mr. Robinson.1

THE COURT:  Okay.2

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  And I -- well, before I went to3

court -- let me back up.  I received a sheet from the Court4

that they did not have my course.  So I called, you know, the -5

- the lawyer’s office.  And I can’t tell you if I talked to Ms.6

White, Renee or Tracy, or Bev.  But anyway, they said that they7

had everything, I didn’t have anything to worry about.8

So later I got my sheet saying that I did not -- you9

know, wasn’t approved because they did not have the course. 10

So -- and I’m here because I feel like I should have --11

everything should have went well because I took the course, did12

everything I was supposed to do.  But I ended up going back to13

Critique, and they gave me -- a Dean Weatherby (sic) attorney14

thing to sign --15

THE COURT:  Just a -- just a second.  Hey, somebody’s16

driving us crazy in court.  Please put your phone on mute.  We17

can’t hear what this witness is saying, and you’re holding up,18

you know, tens of thousands of attorney’s fees on their 1019

o’clock matter.  I’ve got to get this done before we get to20

Arch.  Please mute.21

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Okay.  I went back to the office22

several times, and finally they had me to file a Dean Weatherby23

(sic), that was in 10 --24

THE COURT:  Dean Meriwether, you mean?25
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MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Yeah.  -- 10/11/2014.  And I1

didn’t hear anything, so I went back again.  And I was told2

that they couldn’t use him.  So then they ended up giving me3

Deborah --4

MS. CASE:  Dedra Brock-Moore.5

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Yes.  And ever since then, I’ve6

been playing runaround games.  And I don’t --7

THE COURT:  Well, they gave you that name, but she8

didn’t enter her appearance, did she?9

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Nobody showed up.  I haven’t got10

anywhere since I did that.  I just been calling, and calling,11

going down there, and giving them more, you know, copies of12

paperwork and stuff.  And I called and “somebody get you back,”13

nothing ever happened.14

MS. CASE:  Your Honor, is the problem with this case15

that the debtor’s second course that the debtor took that the16

certificate was not filed with the Clerk, and, therefore, the17

case was closed --18

THE COURT:  Without discharge.19

MS. CASE:  Without discharge.  Is that what the20

problem is?21

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Yeah, they --22

MS. CASE:  And, therefore, you do not -- you did not23

receive your discharge in bankruptcy because Critique Services24

did not file the certificate, and still has not filed the25
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certificate.1

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Yeah.  I even asked for extra2

copies to be even sent to them and to me.3

MS. CASE:  They’re dated March the 13th, Your Honor,4

2014.5

THE COURT:  All right.6

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  And here’s -- here’s all the7

paperwork.8

THE COURT:  Yeah, I think we’re going to issue an9

order to show cause why Critique and Mr. Robinson should not be10

-- refund the $349 you paid as attorney’s fees.  Is that the11

correct amount?12

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  No --13

THE COURT:  Let me double-check.14

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  I paid 300 and 305.15

THE COURT:  Oh, okay, the old attorney -- 305 is the16

old filing fee.17

MS. CASE:  The old filing fee amount.18

THE COURT:  Yeah.19

MS. CASE:  Your Honor, the other problem the debtor20

would have, in order -- she would like to reopen her case, I21

believe is where she is, and pay that fee in order to file this22

certificate.  If her case has been closed --23

THE COURT:  Right.24

MS. CASE:  -- without the financial management25
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certificate being filed --1

THE COURT:  Right.2

MS. CASE:  So I --3

THE COURT:  How -- and what’s our reopen fee?  I4

don’t remember.5

MALE SPEAKER:  Two sixty.6

THE COURT:  Two sixty.  Okay, yeah.  We’re going to7

go ahead and waive her fee to reopen.8

MS. CASE:  So she should take the certificate9

upstairs and file this?10

THE COURT:  Down to the fourth floor.11

MS. CASE:  Yes, Your Honor.12

THE COURT:  Yes, you should.  You should take it13

down.  We’re also going to file an order to show cause for your14

abandonment in the amount of $300 for attorney’s fees.  We’re15

going to find Mr. Robinson and Critique Services jointly and16

severally liable for this amount after we send out an order to17

show cause and see if there is a response.18

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Okay.  Thank you so much.19

THE COURT:  That’s the form of the pleading that you20

will see, okay?21

MS. CASE:  I’ll inform Mr. Radloff, the debtor’s22

trustee.  Thank you, Your Honor.23

THE COURT:  Thank you for appearing.24

MS. McCLINE-CARTER:  Thank you.25
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THE COURT:  That now concludes our 9:30 docket. 1

Everybody wants a five-minute break so they can assemble for2

Arch.  Court will be in recess.3

4

(Whereupon, at 10:11 a.m., the hearing was adjourned.)5

6

7

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIBER8

9

I, KAREN HARTMANN, a certified Electronic Court10

Transcriber, certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript11

from the electronic sound recording of the proceedings in the12

above-entitled matter.13

14

15

16

Karen Hartmann, AAERT CET**D0475  Date:  April 5, 201617

TRANSCRIPTS PLUS, INC.18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 29 
 

Motion to Disgorge, filed by the debtor in In re Little 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 30 
 

Order Directing Meriwether to Respond and the Trustee to Ascertain Surname of 
“Tracy”, entered in In re Little 



IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI 

 
In re:      § Case No. 15-48605-705 
      § 
Prenisa Jenae Little,   § 
      § 
    Debtor. § 
 

ORDER 
 

Attorney Dean D. Meriwether is an attorney affiliated with the “bankruptcy 

services” scam business known as “Critique Services” (the “Critique Services 

Business”).  As has been established in numerous other cases before this Court, 

the Critique Services Business is rip-off operation that promises legal services 

that the business is deliberately designed to never provide.  The “legal services” 

are provided by non-attorneys.  That is, the business of the Critique Services 

Business is the unauthorized practice of law and the exploitation of debtors. The 

business currently is operated through Critique Services L.L.C., a company 

owned by convicted felon Beverly Holmes Diltz, who previously served time for 

fraud, and targets primarily the minority, working poor of the metropolitan St. 

Louis area. Diltz has been enjoined by federal court order from the unauthorized 

practice of law and from operating as a bankruptcy petition preparer.  Every 

attorney, except one, who has ever been affiliated with the Critique Services 

Business has been sanctioned and suspended for his activities there, and two 

attorneys have been disbarred.  Meriwether himself was suspended from the 

privilege of practicing before this Court on December 7, 2015, for (among many 

other things) client abandonment.  And just this past week, Meriwether was 

suspended by the Missouri Supreme Court from practicing law in this state for 

one year.  The Debtor in this Case had the great misfortune of becoming a client 

of Meriwether and the Critique Services Business. 

On November 13, 2015 (before his suspensions), Meriwether filed the 

petition for the Debtor [Doc. No. 1], thereby commencing the above-referenced 

case. The § 341 meeting in this Case was set for December 18, 2015.  However, 



before the § 341 meeting was held, Meriwether was suspended from the 

privilege of practicing before this Court.   

On March 3, 2016, the Debtor filed a letter motion (the “Motion to 

Disgorge”) [Doc. No. 17].  The Debtor seeks disgorgement of the attorney’s fees 

she paid at the Critique Services Business. In support of that request for relief, 

the Debtor alleges that: 

• Meriwether and the Critique Services Business failed to provide all 

documentation required for the completion of her Case. 

• Meriwether and the Critique Services Business failed to communicate with 

the Debtor regarding her Case. 

• Meriwether and the Critique Services Business committed the 

unauthorized practice of law when a “customer service representative” 

named “Tracy” at the Critique Services Business office gave legal advice 

to the Debtor. 

• The Debtor never spoke with Meriwether—despite the fact that he 
filed her Case for her and was her attorney of record. 

• Robert J. Dellamano (“Bob”), another Critique Services attorney (who also 

has now been suspended by the Court) spoke with her—despite the fact 

that he was not her attorney—but he also provided her no legal services. 

• On December 17, 2015, someone from the Critique Services Business 

telephoned the Debtor and lied to her, advising that her § 341 meeting of 

creditors scheduled for December 18, 2015 had been cancelled (This is 

not the first time the Court has heard this allegation regarding the Critique 

Services Business falsely advising its clients that the December 18, 2015 

meeting of creditors had been cancelled.) 

• The Debtor missed her § 341 meeting of creditors scheduled for 

December 18, 2015 because she had been falsely advised by the Critique 

Services Business that the meeting had been cancelled. 

• When the Debtor began receiving documentation in the Case related to 

the fact that she had missed the § 341 meeting, she contacted the chapter 

7 case trustee, Rebecca Case.  Trustee Case advised the Debtor the 



documentation required in her Case had not been filed and that the 

Debtor’s new § 341 meeting date was January 15, 2016. 

• The Debtor then went to the Critique Services Business office, and—only 

then, long after Meriwether’s suspension—was finally told that her 

attorney had been suspended. 

The allegations in the Motion to Disgorge are, sadly, nothing new.  So 

many of these motions to disgorge attorney’s fees have been filed with the Court 

since Meriwether’s suspension that the Court has almost lost track of the total 

number. While the alleged facts are slightly different in each motion, they all 

reveal the same general story about Meriwether and the Critique Services 

Business: gross client abandonment and neglect; the unauthorized practice of 

law; and failure to render legal services. 

The Court hereby directs that Meriwether and Critique Services L.L.C., the 

entity through which the Critique Services Business is operated, file any 

response that they may have to the Motion to Disgorge by Friday, March 11, 

2016.  In addition, the Court directs Trustee Case to make her best, good faith 

efforts to ascertain the surname of the “Tracy” individual who is alleged to work at 

the Critique Services Business.  The Court has now heard reference to a “Tracy” 

in at least three different cases in connection with the rendering of services to a 

debtor.  In this Case, it has been alleged that “Tracy” gave legal counsel.  The 

Court directs Trustee Case to file a statement regarding her findings related to 

the surname of “Tracy” by Friday, March 11, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MatthewC
CER



Copies Mailed Overnight Delivery To: 
 
Dean D. Meriwether 
Critique Services 
Law Offices of Dean Meriwether  
3919 Washington Blvd.  
St. Louis, MO 63108  
 
Critique Services, L.L.C. 
3919 Washington Blvd.  
St. Louis, MO 63108 
 
Office of U.S. Trustee 
111 South Tenth St., Suite 6.353  
St. Louis, MO 63102 
 
E. Rebecca Case, 
Trustee 
7733 Forsyth Blvd., Suite 500  
Saint Louis, MO 63105 
 
Prenisa Jenae Little 
Debtor 
982 Thunderhead Dr.  
St. Louis, MO 63114 
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First Statement of Findings, filed by Trustee in In re Little 
 































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 32 
 

First Affidavit of Debtor Little, filed in In re Little 
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Example of Diltz’s handwriting 
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Affidavit of Debtor Dandridge, filed in In re Little 
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Portion of the First Statement of Findings setting forth summary of information      
provided by Debtor Young 
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Response of Critique Services L.L.C. and Diltz  
to the First Statement of Findings and Affidavits 
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IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

In re: )
) Case No. 16-00402

CRITIQUE SERVICES, LLC, )
BEVERY HOLMES DILTZ, )
JAMES C. ROBINSON, ) Business of the Court
ROBERT J. DELLAMANO, )
DEAN D. MERIWETHER, and )
RENEE MAYWEATHER, )

)
Respondents. )

RESPONSE TO THE ORDER DATED MARCH 18, 2016 OF JUDGE RENDLEN

COME NOW Respondents Critique Services, LLC and Beverly Holmes-Diltz (“These

Respondents”) and in response to this Court’s Order dated March 18, 2016 in the above

captioned matter state as follows:

1. As with These Respondents’ Response to the Show Cause Order in Case No. 16-

0402, These Respondents require a sufficient period of time to conduct full discovery to identify

the person referenced as “Tracy” in the report of E. Rebecca Case, Chapter 7 Trustee for Prenisa

Jenae Little in Case No. 15-48605-705, filed on March 17, 2016.  Within the limited time

provided by this Court to respond to its Order of March 18, 2016 These Respondents have been

able to find some additional information as set forth below.

2. These Respondents also request an evidentiary hearing on all matters raised by the

Court in its Order of March 18, 2016 so that they might properly cross-examine any persons who

are claiming that a woman named “Tracy” provided services to them at the “offices of Critique

Services, LLC.”

3. An Affidavit submitted by a person who claims that a woman named “Tracy”
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served them, even when identifying a picture, without the opportunity to cross-examine such

Affiant does not sufficiently accord due process as guaranteed by the United States Constitution.

4. These Respondents again raise the issue that in the matter of accusations

concerning Critique Services, LLC that Judge Rendlen should recuse himself for the reasons set

forth in its Motion for Recusal and also because he is acting as the prosecuting authority as well

as the judge.  The due process clause of the United States Constitution requires that the matter be

heard by a different judge who is not involved in prosecuting the matter.  Federal Statute, 28

U.S.C. §455 requires the same result.

5. In her statement marked as Exhibit 1-A attached to the Statement of Findings of

E. Rebecca Case, Ms. Little states that she talked to a woman named “Tracy” who she said was a

“customer service representative of Critique Services, LLC.”

6. As noted in Ms. Case’s findings, Critique Services, LLC stated to Ms. Case

through counsel, that Critique Services, LLC had only one person conduct its business, its sole

member, Beverly Holmes Diltz, and that the attorneys with whom Critique Services, LLC had a

contract did not have an employee named “Tracy.”  

7. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of a receipt issued to Ms. Little on

November 4, 2015 showing receipt of $684.00, the amount she paid for attorney’s fees ($349)

and filing fees ($335) in order to begin her bankruptcy.  It is signed by Nicky Lee, an African-

American woman who worked in the offices of the attorney with whom Critique Services, LLC

had an agreement in November 2014.  

8. Ms. Lee, when working for that attorney, worked as the customer service

representative in handling receipt of fees and questions from persons who sought the services of
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the attorney.  A copy of Nicky Lee’s signature on another document is also attached hereto as

Exhibit B.

9. Ms. Lee is an African-American of similar height to Ms. Diltz.

10. Ms. Little should be required to produce all documents she has from her contacts

with Critique Services, LLC or any attorney with a contract with Critique Services, LLC.

11. With regard to Christopher L. Dandridge, Sr., that case, Cause No. 16-40644 is

presided over by Judge Schermer, not Judge Rendlen.  Should there be any impropriety, it is for

Judge Schermer to determine as part of his administering that Debtor’s bankruptcy.

12. The Affidavit of Mr. Dandridge is unsigned.  The receipt supposedly signed by

“Tracy”  that he states he received from the staff of the attorney working under agreement with

Critique Services, LLC was not attached as Exhibit 5-B to Ms. Case’s Statement of Findings. 

That exhibit page is blank.  Without that receipt, These Respondents cannot begin to test the

validity of Mr. Dandridge’s claim that he dealt with a woman named “Tracy” and that woman

appeared to be Ms. Diltz.

13. These Respondents have attempted to find Mr. Dandridge’s file among the

records of the attorney with whom Critique Services, LLC had an agreement, but have not been

able to locate it although their search continues.  a copy of the receipt would most likely be in

that file.

14. These Respondents request that this Court order Mr. Dandridge to produce all

documents that he has with regard to any contact he had with Critique Services, LLC and/or any

attorney with whom Critique Services, LLC had a contract so that These Respondents can test the

validity of Mr. Dandridge’s statements that are not supported by a signed Affidavit.



Page 4 of  5

15. It is not clear from Ms. Case’s Statement of Findings that Debtor Leander Young

identified a woman named “Tracy” that supposedly provided services to him at Critique Services,

LLC’s office and the office of the attorney Dean Meriwether.

16. Although the Court’s Order directed to These Respondents only requested a

response to the findings of two Debtors with regard to the identity of “Tracy,” the comments in

the Statement of Findings with regard to Leander Young infer that he might have made a claim

that a woman named “Tracy” serviced him and/or attended a hearing with him, but that after

further investigation that person whom he thought was “Tracy” was actually attorney Ms. Brock-

Moore.

17. If so, that would be evidence that “Tracy” did not work at the offices in which

Critique Services, LLC is located and that Debtors, such as Mr. Young, were incorrect in making

such allegations.

18. This Court should hold a hearing on any investigation into who “Tracy” might be,

require any person alleging that a “Tracy” provided services to that person produce all documents

that person has concerning any dealings that person had with Mr. Dean Meriwether, anyone on

his staff, or anyone at the offices that are claimed to be the offices of Critique Services, LLC.

WHEREFORE, These Respondents pray that this Honorable Court require that Mr.

Dandridge and Ms. Little produce all documents and writings they have concerning their

relationship, if any, with Critique Services, LLC or Mr. Dean Meriwether or his staff; require Ms.

Case to provide them with a legible copy of what she has stated was the receipt which she labeled

as Exhibit 5-B, but which was blank when attached to her Statement of Findings; grant a period

of no less than three months to conduct discovery; assign this matter for a hearing to another
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Judge who is not acting as prosecutor in this matter; and grant such other and further relief as the

Court deems just under the circumstances herein.

Respectfully submitted,
Attorney for Critique Services, LLC &

Beverly Holmes-Diltz

/s/  Laurence D. Mass                              
Laurence D. Mass    #30977MO
230 South Bemiston, Suite 1200

  St. Louis, Missouri  63105
Phn: (314) 862-3333, Ext. 20
Fax: (314) 862-0605
Email: laurencedmass@att.net

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

By my signature I hereby certify that the foregoing document has been electronically filed
in the above captioned matter, Case No. 16-0402, and in Case No. 15-48605-705 (In re: Prenisa
Jenae Little) with the Clerk of the United States Bankruptcy Court, Eastern District of Missouri

by using the CM/ECF system and that a copy will be served by the CM/ECF system upon

those parties indicated by the CM/ECF system.

By: /s/  Laurence D. Mass                  
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Second Statement of Findings, filed by Trustee in In re Little 
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Affidavit of Debtor Alexander, filed in In re Little 
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Affidavit of Debtor Dethrow, filed in In re Little 
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Additional Response filed by Mass on behalf of Critique Services L.LC.,  
filed in In re Dellamano 
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IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

In re: )
) Case No. 16-00402

CRITIQUE SERVICES, LLC, )
BEVERY HOLMES DILTZ, )
JAMES C. ROBINSON, ) Business of the Court
ROBERT J. DELLAMANO, )
DEAN D. MERIWETHER, and )
RENEE MAYWEATHER, )

)
Respondents. )

ADDITIONAL RESPONSE TO THE MOST RECENT SHOW CAUSE ORDER
IN THE ABOVE CAPTIONED CASE

COME NOW Respondents Critique Services, LLC and Beverly Holmes-Diltz and files

an additional response to the Show Cause Order in the above captioned matter and states as

follows:

1. These Respondents, Critique Services, LLC and Beverly Holmes-Diltz, cannot

locate any file for Mr. Dandridge.  Their original response shall stand as pled.

2. These Respondents can also not locate the files for Kelli Alexander.  However,

they reiterate that no person named “Tracy” was employed by Critique Services, LLC or, to their

knowledge, worked for any attorney with a contract with Critique Services, LLC.

3. These Respondents also cannot locate a file for Twauna Dethrow.  Again, they

reiterate that no person named “Tracy” was employed by Critique Services, LLC or, to their

knowledge, worked for any attorney with a contract with Critique Services, LLC.

4. These Respondents reiterate and reincorporate herein all other points they made in

their original response and again contend that due process requires that no action should be taken
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against them without a hearing on all allegations made where all witnesses may be subject to

cross-examination. 

Respectfully submitted,
Attorney for Critique Services, LLC &
Beverly Holmes-Diltz

/s/  Laurence D. Mass                              
Laurence D. Mass    #30977MO
230 South Bemiston, Suite 1200

  St. Louis, Missouri  63105
Phn: (314) 862-3333, Ext. 20
Fax: (314) 862-0605
Email: laurencedmass@att.net

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

By my signature I hereby certify that the foregoing document has been electronically filed
the with the Clerk of the United States Bankruptcy Court, Eastern District of Missouri by using

the CM/ECF system and that a copy will be served by the CM/ECF system upon those

parties indicated by the CM/ECF system.

By: /s/  Laurence D. Mass                  
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